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Chapter 3: Services


	Chapter 3 (e) : Education Services

	Section
	Improvements Implemented Since Last IAP
	Current Entry Requirements
	Further Improvements Planned

	Operational Requirements


	Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of International Students was revised in December 2003.

Stronger protections for primary and intermediate-aged international students were introduced. 
Signatories to the Code are required to have processes in place to ensure that the developmental and pastoral care needs of international students enrolled in Years 1 to 8 of a school, or aged 13 years and under and enrolled in any other provider, are being appropriate meet, including (but not limited to):

· Access to first language support; 

· Access to first language counselling;

· Cross cultural training for staff in regular contact with international students; and

· Reporting to the Administrator every 6 months.

Under the changes, signatories must determine and document that all international students in Years 1 to 6 of a school, or aged 10 and under and enrolled in any other provider, are living with and continue to live with a parent.

Signatories must obtain approval from the Administrator to enroll international students in Years 7 and 8 of a school, or aged 11 to 13 and enrolled in any other provider, and who are not living with a parent. 

E-learning

Interim Tertiary e-Learning Framework

This framework, for the period 2004-7, sets a strategic direction to co-ordinate effort and maximise benefits for all stakeholders involved in e-learning in the tertiary sector.  Seven action areas will be addressed at a national level:

· Development of a community of practice to share e-learning information and experiences in a collegial manner

· Reliable research into e-learning in the New Zealand context

· Professional development for staff in tertiary organisations

· Adoption of relevant technical and design standards for e-learning developments

· Development of appropriate legal and policy frameworks for electronic rights management.

· Development of qualifications and frameworks for credentials that recognise flexible learning pathways

· Exploration of new e-learning opportunities for marginalised learners
	All sectors are subject to the measures outlined in the “General Approach to Trade in Services” section.

The following Acts and associated regulations apply to all services sectors and establish parameters for general business practice in New Zealand.

· Employment Relations Act 2000

· Companies Act 1993

· Consumer Guarantees Act 1993

· Health and Safety in Employment Act 1992

· Resource Management Act 1991

· Commerce Act 1986

· Fair Trading Act 1986

· Local Government Act 1974

The Education Act 1989 governs education services in New Zealand and covers both public and private providers of education services.  Key agencies are the Ministry of Education (http://www.minedu.govt.nz) and New Zealand Qualifications Authority (http://www.nzqa.govt.nz). 

Other Acts relevant to education services are:

· Education Act 1964

· Private Schools Condition Integration Act 1975

· Industry Training Act 1992

· Modern Apprenticeship Training Act 2000

· Student Loan Scheme Act 1992

· Part 5 Public Finance Act 1989

Research and innovation policies are developed through the Ministry of Research, Science & Technology (http://www.morst.govt.nz).  MORST manages the publicly funded part of the RS&T system on behalf of the Government.  It contracts other agencies such as the Foundation for Research, Science and Technology (http://www.frst.govt.nz) to manage the actual funding of research and innovation projects.

E-learning

State of the Sector

New Zealand’s tertiary organisations have continued to expand on their e-learning knowledge, expertise and provision. Our cross-border delivery of education has increased. In many cases development of e-learning has involved entering into new and promising collaborative arrangements, both nationally and internationally. Similarly, New Zealand’s commercial sector has increased the scope and depth of its e-learning offerings, and our corporate e-learning market has grown.

The following key programmes have been established:

e-Learning Collaborative Development Fund (eCDF) 

A fund of $28 million over four years (2003 to 2007) to support collaborative initiatives concerned with developing the e-learning capability of New Zealand’s tertiary education organisations. The fund is administered by the Tertiary Education Commission.

Tertiary e-Learning Research Fund

A contestable fund for research into the current context and future impact of e-learning on tertiary learners, teachers and organisations in New Zealand. Findings from the research will contribute to a scenario planning initiative in 2005. 

eLearn – New Zealand’s Tertiary e-Learning Portal
Being redeveloped to support development of an e-learning community of practice – one of the action areas in the Interim Tertiary e-Learning Framework. Benefits will include reduced duplication of effort in developing e-learning, leveraging shared expertise, and ensuring that developments in e-learning are coherent and have strong and well considered foci.

	International Education

On 11 May 2004 the Minister of Education announced a $40 million package of new initiatives over the next four years, to support a more strategic approach to international education.  

The aim of this package, which is part of the government Growth and Innovation strategy funded in the 2004 Budget, is to strengthen quality in international education provision, boost education linkages with key countries, and promote research, innovation and diversification within the education sector.

The package includes funding to establish 200 international education scholarships and study awards, to boost quality, to establish four off-shore education counsellors (the first counsellor is now in place in Beijing), for promotion and marketing, and for innovation in this sector.

E-learning

The Interim Tertiary e-Learning Framework will eventually be superseded by an integrated, pan-sector e-learning strategy that will encompass the schools and early childhood sectors, as well as the tertiary sector.

e-Learning Standards Development

The Ministry of Education, in consultation with the tertiary education sector and other government agencies, is taking a role in the development of New Zealand standards. These standards are required to ensure quality and interoperability within e-learning practices and systems. The priority is for New Zealand’s tertiary education sector to decide on which international standards to adopt or adapt, and to decide on mechanisms for encouraging compliance.



	Licensing and Qualification Requirements of Service Providers


	See above re: revised Code of Practice for the Pastoral Care of international Students.


	At the higher education level, private and other providers are required to meet certain conditions before they can access government assistance – registration and accreditation with the New Zealand Qualifications Authority (http://www.nzqa.govt.nz), and provision of proof of company registration or incorporation and financial viability to the Ministry of Education (http://www.minedu.govt.nz).  The same principle applies in relation to private provision at the schools level (primary and secondary education).  If the Ministry of Education is satisfied that the premises, staffing, equipment, and curriculum of a school of proposed school are suitable, the Ministry can register that school as a private school in New Zealand.

Tertiary Education Commission (TEC)

The TEC was established on 1 January 2003.  It is responsible for funding all post-compulsory education and training offered by all tertiary education organisations (TEO – that is universities, polytechnics, colleges of education, wananga, private training establishments, foundation education agencies, industry training organizations and adult and community education providers.)  

The TEC also oversee the implementation of the Tertiary Education Strategy and associated priorities.

Charters and Profiles

Charters and Profiles demonstrate the alignment of tertiary education organisations’ activities and provision with the Tertiary Education Strategy (TES) 2002-07 and the annual Statement of Tertiary Education Priorities and provide the basis for funding negotiations with the TEC.

A Charter is a high-level governance document that describes a TEO’s role in the tertiary education system and how it aligns with the TES. It covers a medium to long-term time-frame and provides the basis for a Profile.  

A Profile is prepared annually and demonstrates how a TEO gives effect to the Charter, and sets out the basis on which government funding will be sought each year. All tertiary education organisations are required to develop a profile during 2004.

Since 1 January 2003, the government has ring-fenced an amount of Student Component funding for Private Training Establishments (PTEs) that offer qualifications at, or equivalent to, level 3 or above on the National Qualifications Framework (NQF). For 2004, this is $150.335 million.

TEC maintains PTE funding within this amount by applying an Equivalent Full-Time Student (EFTS)  funding cap. This cap restricts funded EFTS places in each PTE to the 2001-funded EFTS level calculated at 2004 rates.

For PTEs that did not have a full year of EFTS funding in 2001 because they did not exist at the beginning of 2001, an EFTS cap has been calculated based on their first full 12 months of EFTS funding.

A PTE Strategic Priorities Fund (SPF), within the ring-fenced allocation, is available to provide a capped amount of further funding to PTEs for strategically aligned qualifications. For 2004, the government wishes to increase alignment to the Tertiary Education Strategy (TES) by freeing up some of the under-utilised portion of the EFTS funding caps and transferring it into the SPF

The New Zealand Qualifications Authority operates specific quality assurance requirements for New Zealand Institutions offering New Zealand qualifications offshore (Mode of Supply: Commercial Presence), and is progressively negotiating bilateral arrangements for quality assurance of programmes offered between or across New Zealand and partner countries.

Code of Practice

All education providers must be a signatory to the Code of Practice to enrol international students.
	

	Foreign Entry


	
	Foreign investment in New Zealand is subject to the provisions of the Overseas Investment Act 1973 and associated regulations.

There are no additional regulatory requirements for foreign entry into the education sector.  Foreign providers of education in New Zealand must meet the same requirements as New Zealand providers.

The Government makes public funding available for research.  Research from overseas agencies may be funded where this maximizes the concept of benefit to New Zealand.  In practice, this is unlikely to happen unless foreign researchers have very strong linkages, or are working in collaboration with, a New Zealand research provider (http://www.morst.govt.nz and http://www.frst.govt.nz). 


	

	Discriminatory Treatment/

MFN


	
	With the exception of the measures indicated in the horizontal section of New Zealand’s WTO General Agreement on Trade in Services (GATS) schedule, there are no provisions which discriminate between domestic and foreign suppliers in private education.

New Zealand has a special relationship with Australia, through the Australia-New Zealand Closer Economic Relations Trade Agreement entered into in 1983.  This is based on a comprehensive set of trade and economic arrangements, collectively known as CER, which underpin substantial flows of merchandise trade, services, investment, labour and visitors between the two countries.

Australian students resident in New Zealand (Mode of Supply: Consumption Abroad) are treated as domestic students at both the schools and higher education levels, for the purpose of accessing Government subsidized education services.


	


